
 
 

SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND LGES 
MEETING 

 
4.00 pm MONDAY, 26TH APRIL, 2021 

 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

A Pre-Meeting will take place prior to this Meeting and a separate invitation 
will be sent from Scrutiny Support Officers to Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s Meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
 

All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used as outlined 

above. 

 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can 
be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 
 

3. Additional Learning Needs (ALN) and Outreach 
Support across the Authority  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Education 
 

5 - 26 

4. Review of the Education Other Than At School 
(EOTAS) Provision  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Education 
 

27 - 32 

5. Forward Work Programme 2020/21   

 To consider the attached report 
 

33 - 42 

6. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

7. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

8. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  
 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors:  H R Jones (Chair) 

                      S Jago (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors: H Barrett, B Carter, D Isaac and M Jones 
 
Co-optees: C Brown, K Phelan, M Symonds, K Jones 
and F Whitefoot 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Additional Learning Needs (ALN) and Outreach 
Support across the Authority 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 This report provides Scrutiny members with information regarding the local authority 
Outreach provision for ALN pupils from July 2020 to date. 

 

1.2 It also provides information on how the local authority is preparing to meet its 
statutory duties under the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) 
Act 2018. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The content of this report is discussed and noted. 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The COVID pandemic has presented challenges to schools and schools’ support 
staff.  A series of lockdowns, social distancing, the introduction of teaching bubbles, 
staff and pupil self-isolation, limitations on school visits and adhering to risk 
assessments.  These have been mitigated as far as possible by changes in practice, 
with the aim of reducing the impact on the learners we support which has been 
reported to Scrutiny previously. 

 

3.2 Alongside this response, services supporting learners with additional learning needs 
have had to prepare themselves, and schools’ staff, for Welsh Government’s 
Additional Learning Needs Education Act (ALNET) which comes into effect from 
September 2021. 

 

3.3 The local authority has 14 Learning Resource Classes across the Authority: 
ASD/Social Communication (one Secondary, three Key Stage 2 and two Foundation 
Phase) 
Complex Needs (four Key Stage 2 and two Foundation Phase) 
Nurture (1 Key Stage 2 and 1 Foundation Phase) 

  

Date Written 13th April 2021 

Report Author Jill Watkins 

Service Area Additional Learning Needs 

Committee Date 26th April 2021 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



4.0 WHERE WE WERE 
 
4.1 Through the Regional Transformation Lead for the ALNET, considerable preparation 

for the ALN Reform has taken place, with numerous training events and regional 
meetings taking place between Education and Health to shape provision under the 
new ALNET.  The ALN service has been represented on all working parties, 
including those with Health and continues to work alongside The College, Merthyr to 
help prepare for the ALN reform. 

 
4.2 All schools across the County Borough have engaged in training in readiness for the 

new Act. 
 
4.3 The Merthyr Additional Learning Needs Coordinator (ALNCo) Forum was 

established as an effective professional learning platform to meet the needs of the 
ALN Transformation agenda in all our schools and educational settings.  The four 
Cluster Leads act as Pathfinders supported by the Regional Transformation Lead 
and local authority officers in a co-construction model of learning and developing 
professional practice. 
 

4.4 Support for the Learning Resource Classes was provided by the Team Leader for 
ALN. 

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 
5.1 ALN Reform 
 
5.1.1 The Minister has recognised the significant impact of Covid and wrote to local 

authorities on 2nd February 2021 outlining the revised plans for the implementation of 
the new system based on what is reasonably deliverable in current circumstances.  
 

5.1.2 The letter to local authorities advised: 
 

‘From 1st September 2021, the ALN system will commence for children of 
compulsory school age and below who: 
 attend maintained schools in Nursery Years 1 and 2 and Year 1, Year 3, Year 5, 

Year 7 and Year 10 who have special educational provision via School Action or 
School Action Plus; 

 are detained; and 

 do not have special educational needs on or before that date, regardless of their 
year group or setting – including those that may attend an EOTAS setting, an 
independent school or who are Electively Home Educated. 

 
This means that children who currently have special educational provision via a 
Statement, and those who are in any form of post-16 education, will not be included 
in the first year of implementation.’ 
 

5.1.3 Recruitment to the statutory role of Early Years Additional Learning Needs Officer 
(EYALNLO) has been completed and the postholder took up their role in January 
2021.  

  

Page 6



5.1.4 All Primary, Secondary and Special school ALNCos attend the half termly, one day 
training events, as well as Merthyr College, Early Years and Educational Psychology 
Service professionals.  The focus is on leading whole school improvement in relation 
to the identification of ALN, the development of Individual Development Plans (IDPs), 
provision management, self-evaluation, accountability and systematic reporting to 
Governors. 

 

5.1.5 100% of schools have participated fully in the Merthyr IDP Pilot.  Merthyr LA has 
seconded an experienced ALNCo for three terms to lead the quality assurance 
process across all schools, provide support and keep Additional Learning Provision 
(ALP) under review.  An additional part time ALN Lead Officer, took up appointment 
in January 2021 to support disagreement resolution and build capacity within the 
ALN Team to enable the local authority to meet its statutory duties under the ALNET 
Act. 

 

5.1.6 The Learning Department has built capacity within its ALN Team and is well placed 
to meet the new statutory duty on local authorities of keeping ALP under review.  
The local authority needs to be in a position to make an informed judgement on ALP 
and able to report on the evidence of the extent to which the following is available in 
schools for learners with ALN: 

 High quality differentiated teaching 

 Reasonable adjustments to enable access to the curriculum, environment and 
facilities 

 Targeted interventions and support 

 Effective systems for monitoring progress, achievement and inclusion 

 Involvement of specialists 

 Reviewing effectiveness of interventions, skill and expertise of staff 

 Involvement of children and their Parent/Carers 
 

5.1.7 All schools were requested to re-submit an online ALN Transformation School 
Readiness survey to the Central South Consortium at the end of March. 
 

5.1.8 It is important to recognise that ALN Transformation is integral to the current national 
education reform – see Appendix 1 (ALN Transformation and the wider educational 
reforms). 

 

5.2 Outreach Support 
 
5.2.1 From September 2020, the local authority commissioned Greenfield Special School 

to support staff within the Learning Resource Bases (LRBs). Greenfield have 
identified staff to work alongside LRB staff to provide them with regular, consistent, 
peer-peer support in relation to teaching and learning.  Despite the restrictions of the 
pandemic, good working relationships have been developed with almost all teachers 
working within LRBs. 

 

5.2.2 All LRBs have been provided with IRIS Connect – a video-enabled professional 
learning platform, giving teachers the opportunity to share classroom-based teaching 
and learning. 

 

5.2.3 The support has varied from on-site visits to virtual meetings and has been able to 
support with teaching ideas, moving pupils on with specific skill development, 
moderation processes and will soon support with embedding the new assessment 
tool, B Squared.  

Page 7



5.2.4 Virtual termly support sessions were delivered for all LRB teachers, with an excellent 
attendance rate. These have focused on return to school arrangements, Autumn 
2020 and sharing best practice regarding distance learning, Spring 2021. 

 
5.2.5 The annual Instep audit was undertaken in LRBs during the Autumn term 2020.  The 

COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in pupils’ education being disrupted since March 
2020, however individualised programmes put in place to support pupils, have 
helped to reduce the impact on pupil progress.  

 
5.2.6 Teachers reported that some pupils have struggled without the predictable class 

routine and, in some cases have not engaged with home learning despite their 
parents’ best efforts, resulting in these pupils regressing. 

 

 Foundation Phase pupils have made an average 13% increase in English (a 1% 
decrease compared to the previous three-year average progress); and 10% 
increase in maths (a 1% decrease compared to the previous three-year average 
progress). 

 At KS2, progress in English has been maintained at an average of 7% across 
KS2.  An average 8% progress was made in maths (a 2.5% decrease compared 
to the previous three-year average progress). 

 
5.2.7 Instep assessment is being replaced by B-Squared assessment across all LRBs 

from Spring 2021, with training commencing in February 2021 and baseline 
assessment planned to commence after February half-term.  This will be supported 
by Greenfield Outreach. 
 

5.2.8 LRB Moderation Project: Despite the restrictions from the pandemic, the moderation 
event continued in the Autumn term.  Google Drive was used to upload and share 
submissions and the moderation process took place virtually via TEAMS.  Three 
more LRBs submitted work to be moderated this term, which meant that all LRBs, 
except one provided work.  The one school that did not submit work was still 
involved in the process and joined to moderate other schools’ work.  With the 
support of the Outreach more teachers had their work approved and the overall 
approval rate has increased from 44% approval last year to 64% approval this time. 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 
 
6.1 The Learning Department working effectively to meet the requirements of the 

ALNET. 
 
6.2 All schools are working effectively to meet the requirements of the ALNET. 
 
6.3 The Greenfield Outreach service for LRBs developed as an effective support for 

professional development, ensuring all staff deliver excellent teaching and learning 
activities for the children in their care. 

 
6.4 All children within LRBs classes make at least the expected progress in their 

learning. 
 

  

Page 8



7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 
 
7.1 Continue collaboration with Schools, regional partners and Health to prepare for and 

embed the requirement of the ALNET Act. 
 

7.2 Continue to build capacity within the ALN Team in order for the local authority to 
meet its statutory duties under the ALNET Act 2018. 

  
7.3 Appoint an IDP Officer to work across Children Services and the Learning 

Department to coordinate IDPs for Children Looked After pupils. 
 
7.4 Embed the work of the LRB Outreach service. 
 
7.5 Support LRB staff to complete baseline assessments and embed the new 

assessment tool, B Squared. 
 
7.6 Continue to review specialist provisions to ensure that they meet the needs of our 

learners. 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO RAISING ACHIEVEMENTS, RAISING 
STANDARDS STRATEGY 

 

 Theme of Partnership & Collaboration 

 Goals of Developing the Education Workforce, Supporting Learners Health and 
Wellbeing & Improving Achievement and Progression 

 
9.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

 
9.1 The contents of this report relate to the following Wellbeing Objectives: 

Best Start to Life 
Living Well 

 
 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER, LEARNING 

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  

PORTFOLIO LEAD 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



ALN Transformation and the wider educational 
reforms

Merthyr Inclusion Service

February 2021

Liz Jones ALN Transformation Lead, Central South

P
age 11



Education in Wales: 
Our national 

mission

Encompasses 5 policy areas:

• Curriculum

• Assessment and evaluation

• Equity, excellence and well-being

• Teaching

• Leadership

Curriculum change became the spearhead of this 
reform journey, with each of the other policy areas 
aiming to turn the new curriculum into a reality.

P
age 12



Curriculum for 
Wales 
Framework

A national framework has been created but implementing the 
curriculum and assessment arrangements requires school level 
design.

The school’s curriculum is meant to be more relevant to the 
local context and thus more engaging for learners.

The curriculum is built around big ideas and based on broad 
competencies as opposed to curricula based solely on content 
knowledge or on skills.  

Progression replaces more generalised stages of attainment 
and underpins the idea of a learning continuum that is more 
suited to those who experience the greatest challenges in 
terms of their learning.

Assessment is used to identify and meet individual learning 
needs through personalised learning.

P
age 13



Alignment

Inclusive education is seen as the ability of teachers to adapt ordinary 
teaching methods in a way that supports learning but recognises difference. 
Its success is based on the ordinary actions of teachers who see themselves 

as capable of meeting the needs of all learners in their class. It is not 
therefore dependent on the use of specialised practices, but on the need to 

improve the quality of teaching and the development of rich contexts for 
learning that support the participation of everyone.

The reforms emphasise a fully inclusive education system which balances 
equity of access to the curriculum for all learners with addressing the needs 

of individual learners. Excellence and equity are not mutually exclusive goals.

P
age 14



ALN and 
improving 
teaching and 
learning

The key to meeting the needs of all children lies in the 
staff’s knowledge of each child and …

The staff’s capacity to then match this knowledge with 
identifying ways of providing appropriate access to the 
curriculum for every child is also critical. Consequently, 
improvements in the teaching and learning of children and 
young people with ALN cannot be isolated from 
improvements in the teaching and learning for children and 
young people across the school or FEI as a whole. 
Improvement in one should be mutually supportive of 
improvement in the other (parag 2.23 draft Code)

P
age 15



Approach for 
achieving the 
reforms: The 
School as a 
Learning 
Organisation

This model identifies 7 dimensions and their underlying 
characteristics all of which are considered essential for 
transformation to be sustainable. The first dimension is 
developing a vision:  

• A shared and inclusive vision aims to enhance the 
learning experiences and outcomes of all students

• The vision focuses on a broad range of learning 
outcomes, encompasses both the present and the 
future, and is inspiring and motivating

• Learning and teaching are oriented towards realising the 
vision

• Vision is the outcome of a process involving all staff

• Students, parents, the external community and other 
partners are invited to contribute to the school’s vision

P
age 16



A vision that is centred on the 
learning of all pupils

Any vision to transform a school into a learning organisation should 
include two things: a front and centre commitment to making a difference 
in the learning and lives of all students, especially disadvantaged students; 
and a focus on learning and teaching that influences a broad range of 
outcomes – both cognitive and social/emotional – for today and the 
future. Each individual must be equipped to seize learning opportunities 
throughout life, to broaden her or his knowledge, skills and attitudes, and 
to adapt to a changing, complex and interdependent world

P
age 17



Statutory Duties: Maintained schools

• Decide whether a child has ALN

• The preparation, content, form, review and revision of IDPs

• Ceasing to maintain an IDP

• Provide information to children and parents/carers about the new ALN 
system 

P
age 18



Schools will 
need to make 

a judgment 
based 

exclusively 
on the 

progress that 
learners 
make. 

Less than expected progress in learning is described 
in the code as follows:

Is significantly slower than that of their peers starting 
from the same baseline,

Fails to match or better the child’s or young person’s 
previous rate of progress; or,

Fails to close, or widens, the attainment gap between 
the child or young person and their peers, despite the 
provision of support aimed at closing that gap.

P
age 19



Deciding on 
when a learner 
has ALN

If the learner has a significant learning difficulty or a 
disability that calls for additional learning provision then 
the answer is yes.

If the learner’s needs can be met without ALP then the 
learner would not be described as having ALN.

So the question is dependent on What constitutes ALP?

P
age 20



Statutory Duties: LA

LA duties:

• Provision of advice and information (specific – in relation to individual 
learners, and general – to support the functioning and effectiveness of the 
ALN system, including keeping ALP under review)

• Avoidance and resolution of disagreements

• Provision of independent advocacy services.

P
age 21



Keeping ALP under review

Reporting on the 
evidence of the extent 
to which the following 
are available in schools 
for learners with ALN:

High quality 
differentiated teaching

Reasonable adjustments 
to enable access to the 

curriculum, environment 
and facilities

Targeted interventions 
and support

Effective systems for 
monitoring progress, 

achievement and 
inclusion

Involvement of 
specialists

Reviewing effectiveness 
of interventions, skill 
and expertise of staff

Involvement of children 
and their parents/carers

P
age 22



Guidance 
for schools: 
Draft Code

Local authorities may consider providing guidance to 
schools on these matters and on what provision 
schools would ordinarily be expected to make 
available for children and young people with ALN.

They could consider publishing details of the support 
schools can expect from the local authority and its 
partners within NHS bodies, for children and young 
people who require ALP. 

They may also wish to set up moderating groups to 
support transparency and consistency in decision 
making in respect of referrals from schools for 
determination.

P
age 23



Principles

The LA should establish, in consultation with maintained 
schools, and publish a set of principles it will apply when 
determining whether it is reasonable for a school to secure 
the ALP required by a learner or whether the authority 
ought to do so. The principles should relate to:

• The extent and duration of advice from external 
specialists that is likely to be unreasonable for a school 
to secure;

• The equipment that is likely to be unreasonable for a 
school to provide; and

• The intensity and duration of support and scale of 
internal engagement of staff at the school that is likely 
to be unreasonable for a school to provide.

P
age 24



Provision schools 
would ordinarily 
be expected to 
make available

• How do LA officers currently 
hold schools to account for 
the quality of inclusive 
practice?

• What is practice like in 
schools?

• How do you know?

• What needs to happen next?

P
age 25

https://inclusionbc.org/back-to-school-2018/


Draft regional guidance

Leadership

Inclusive environments

Effective teaching and learning

Determining ALN

Evidence based practice for ALN

ALP

P
age 26



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Review of the Education Other Than At School 
(EOTAS) Provision 
 

 
1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report provides Scrutiny members with information regarding: - 

 the impact of changes to provision for learners identified as EOTAS 

 the impact of changes on the attainment for this group of young people 

 future considerations for curriculum delivery for this group of learners 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 This report is discussed and noted. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Over the years the Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) has had several different names and 

venues and has gone by various guises.  However, there remains a constant demand 
for bespoke support for those pupils who are unable to receive their education in 
school, whether it be for medical reasons or for those with social, emotional and 
behavioural needs. 

 

3.2 Pupils who need EOTAS provision require support for their wellbeing as well as their 
academic needs and are entitled to the best start to life, as is any pupil in a mainstream 
setting. To ensure that these pupils receive the education to which they are entitled, 
the EOTAS provision became registered as a PRU in 2018 and therefore would be 
subject to the same accountability framework and also support as a school. 

  

Date Written 5th April 2021 

Report Author Sarah Bowen 

Service Area Inclusion 

Committee Date 26th April 2021 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4



3.3 The same entitlement applies to those pupils in receipt of special tuition and in order 
to build capacity within the team and to meet demand, a  Service Level Agreement 
(SLA) was agreed with Equity Solutions in 2018.  This service became named Dysgu 
Newydd. The purpose of this provision was to provide high-quality teachers, tutors 
and/or support staff for bespoke 1:1/small groups of learners with complex emotional 
needs, anxiety and those on the cusp of exclusion.  

 
3.4 The local authority has a statutory duty to provide an education for all pupils who are 

on the roll of a school, but who are unable to access mainstream education, as well 
as those who are permanently excluded.  As a minimum, pupils enrolled on the Special 
Tuition programme, will receive the following: 
 KS1, KS2 and KS3 - one hour per day or five hours per week 

 KS4 - two hours per day or ten hours per week 
 
3.5 In the case of a pupil being permanently excluded, 25 hours needs to be offered, 

however, these pupils are not always able to engage with this amount of learning.  
Their poor levels of engagement may well have attributed to their permanent exclusion 
in the first place.  In such cases the local authority will work with the pupil and the 
family to ensure that a bespoke package of education can be provided to suit the 
needs of the individual. 

 
3.6 When a pupil is temporarily removed from a school and educated in such situations 

as special tuition or the PRU, the appropriate proportion of the pupil’s age weighted 
pupil unit (AWPU) will also transfer with effect from the day of transfer. 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 
 
4.1 The local authority registered Ty Dysgu as a Pupil Referral Unit for pupils in Key 

stages 2,3 and 4 from September 1st, 2018.  The provisions were set up on two sites: 
Key Stages 3 & 4 occupying the former Homfray site (now known as Ty Dysgu 
Homfray), and Key Stage 2 occupying the former Dowlais Infant School site (now 
known as Ty Dysgu Dowlais). 

 
4.2 At the same time the local authority entered into a SLA with Equity Solutions to 

provide high quality education provision for those learners who require special tuition 
(now known as Dysgu Newydd).  This provision is currently out to tender to continue 
this level of provision moving forward. 

 
4.3 Ty Dysgu offers provision in a school style setting, while Dysgu Newydd offers 1-1 

tuition in the home where this is deemed appropriate, or increasingly in pairs and 
small groups where learners can access a more relaxed, less busy environment. 
Venues used include Cefn Community Centre and the 3Gs Community Centre, 
Gurnos. 

 
4.4 From September 2019 Greenfield School has provided its own tuition to those 

learners who are unable to access full time provision due to the complex needs of 
their pupils.  

  

Page 28



5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 
5.1 From September 2020 the Foundation Phase (FPh) nurture class, which had been 

opened at Abercanaid Primary School, moved to Ty Dysgu Dowlais and the PRU is 
now registered to take children from Foundation Phase to KS4. 

 
5.2 The bungalow situated on the Dowlais site has been refurbished and set up as a 

suitable learning environment for the delivery of special tuition.  This was ready for 
September 2020, however, due to the Covid pandemic social distancing guidance it 
has not run to full capacity as of yet. 

 
5.3 At Ty Dysgu there are currently 7 pupils in the FPh, 10 in KS2 and 21 in KS3/4, all of 

whom are male. 
 

5.4 Ty Dysgu is registered as an examination centre, although pupils remain dual 
registered with their home school.  Those pupils receiving special tuition who remain 
on the roll of their school, will sit examinations through their home school, otherwise 
they will do so via Ty Dysgu. 

 
5.5 Nearly all pupils in Dysgu Newydd in Y10 and Y11 have achieved A*-C in the 

London Institute of Banking and Finance (LIBF) Personal Finance in the Spring term. 
All pupils have also achieved BTEC Success with Employment Education and 
Training (SWEET) except for those learners who entered Dysgu Newydd after 
December 2020. 

 
5.6 Ty Dysgu entered learners for GCSE numeracy in November 2020 prior to the 

stopping of examinations; five out of the seven achieving a pass. 
 
5.7 During the academic year 2019/20 there were 68 pupils accessing special tuition – 

this has decreased to 57 in 2020/21 (see Appendix 1 & 2). This is partly attributable 
to the fact that schools have been shut for a period of time due to Covid and that as 
schools have become more adept at delivering education online, they have been 
able to deliver “inhouse” home tuition. 

 
5.8 The learners in both Ty Dysgu Homfray/Dowlais and Dysgu Newydd are subject to 

change depending upon the needs across the local authority.  The aim is for learners 
to return to their home school although this is increasingly difficult when learners 
reach KS4 and the aim of both provisions is to act as a ‘revolving door’. 

 
5.9 Both provisions have remained open since September although attendance has 

been erratic.  On average the weekly attendance to Ty Dysgu has been 48.18%.  A 
number of pupils have found it difficult to adjust back to a school routine, so 
exclusion figures have increased this academic year.  It is important to note 
however, that many of these learners have acute needs and/or medical conditions 
and that this will invariably have an impact on their engagement and behaviour. 

 
5.10 Placements for Ty Dysgu and Dysgu Newydd are continually reviewed at either the 

Special Tuition Panel, Clearing Panel or the SEBD Placement Panel.  There are 
robust lines of communication around pupil progress and wellbeing between the 
settings, Panel meetings and the schools. 

  

Page 29



5.11 Both groups of learners have benefitted from stronger links with outside agencies 
and providers.  

 Extra activities have been delivered via Stephens and George Charitable Trust 
(S&GCT) as part of their work with the local authority on promoting literacy. 

 This has included pupils in Ty Dysgu working with the author Karla Braling during 
the Autumn term to explore the dreams and aspirations through writing activities. 
One Year 6 pupil was so inspired that he continued to write stories after these 
sessions ceased.  

 As part of the local authority and S&GCT Christmas literacy project Tee2Sugars, a 
graffiti artist worked with learners at both provisions on Christmas themed art 
murals for public display.  

 In the Spring term the learners in Ty Dysgu and Dysgu Newydd worked with Mike 
Church, a children's writer, on designing and creating their own pieces of 
inspirational fiction. These have been turned into artistic posters for World Book 
Day for display across the County Borough. 

 
5.12 Learners from Ty Dysgu Newydd also access the Dowlais Community Centre site 

when available to use the facilities. 
 
5.13 Wherever possible all pupils have access to Social and Emotional Literacy sessions, 

counselling, Inspire 2 Achieve (I2A) and Personal Social and Emotional (PSE).  Both 
provisions work closely with the Education Psychology Service and with ALN 
department to ensure that Statement reviews are held in a timely and meaningful 
manner.  However, reticence and reluctance to engage has been a barrier for pupils 
in accessing this support.  Neuro Development Team (NDT) & Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services (CAMHS) referrals are made, and appointments are followed 
up, but the waiting lists for these are invariable long. 

 
5.14 Within both provisions there is a heavy emphasis on developing positive social 

engagement.  Ty Dysgu is part of the Nurture Schools Project with other schools 
across the local authority. This project supports staff to develop and embed a 
nurturing culture throughout the provisions, enhancing teaching and learning, 
promoting healthy outcomes for children and young people, all by focusing on 
emotional needs and development, as well as academic learning in a whole-school 
environment. The aim is for Ty Dysgu to achieve the National Nurture Schools 
Quality Mark. 

  
5.15 Participation in the Rights Respecting Award Scheme has taught pupils about both 

their rights and responsibilities.  Both sites will be aiming to achieve their Bronze 
Award initially, which recognises the provision as creating safe and inspiring places 
to learn. 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 
 
6.1 The local authority needs to better enable improved outcomes for the pupils in these 

provisions in respect of wellbeing, attainment, attendance and behaviour, and 
ultimately, for more pupils to be ready to return to mainstream setting. 

 
6.2 Develop Ty Dysgu as an Outreach Service to support mainstream schools. 
  

Page 30



7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 
 
7.1 The following will need to be undertaken and/or further developed to allow for further 

improvements:  
 Urgently secure a more suitable setting for Ty Dygsu Homfray – possibly utilising 

the Ty Dysgu Dowlais site more fully. 
 Work with Social Services more effectively to secure support for those learners 

with increasingly challenging needs. 
 Develop stronger links between Ty Dysgu, Dysgu Newydd and mainstream 

schools to encourage more opportunities for young people to access aspects of 
the mainstream curriculum. 

 Develop more robust packages to support those learners permanently excluded. 
 Produce a Directory of Alternative Placements for all schools to utilise as a way of 

offering additional learning pathways.  

 Work in partnership with CSC and other agencies to develop Ty Dysgu more fully.  

 Develop Ty Dysgu as more of a cohesive unit although currently based across 
two sites. 

 Ty Dysgu Dowlais is a developing provision and needs further support to ensure it 
meets the needs of these vulnerable learners. 

 Finalise the procurement process for Dysgu Newydd to ensure continued support 
for high quality tutors to support those pupils in receipt of special tuition. 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO RAISING ASPIRATIONS RAISING STANDARDS 
STRATEGY 
 

8.1 The contents of this report relate to the following RARS Themes and Goals 
 Themes – Partnership and Collaboration; and Pandemic Recovery  

 Goals – Developing the Education Workforce; Supporting Learners’ Health and 
Wellbeing; Improving Achievement and Progression; Developing the Environment 
for Learning  

 

9.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 

9.1 The contents of this report relate to the following Wellbeing Objectives: 

 Best start to life – children and young people are equipped with the skills they need 
to be successful learners and confident individuals. 

 Living Well – tackling adverse childhood experiences and developing community 
resilience; improving emotional wellbeing and mental health. 

 Working well – preparing learners for the life of work 
 
 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER, LEARNING 

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON  
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  

PORTFOLIO LEAD 
 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

Page 31



 

Page 32



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2020/21  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Forward Work Programme and approves, 
revises or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in 
planning for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached forward work programme identifies the topics and issues under 
consideration by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional 
subjects to be identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 16th December 2020 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 26th April 2021 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 34



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives? 

b. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s corporate 
priorities/ objectives? 

c. Is this item/ topic relating to service performance concerns? 
d. Is this item/ topic of significant public interest? 
e. Does the item/ topic have any budgetary implications? 
f. Is this an item/ topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
g. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department; 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue; 
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation/ review; 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 
 

 

Page 35



Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy/ strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives/ other plan/ other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role/ achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas/ 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate/ Cabinet 
Member/ External Partner etc. prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending to ensure that they have the information/ 
answer ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format/ venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 global pandemic, all scrutiny committees 
are to be held via Microsoft Teams at least for the time-being. This decision 
has been taken to ensure the safety of our members, officers and all others in 
attendance. Currently, there is no clear indication of when hybrid meetings will 
be appropriate; and this will be reviewed in line with any updates and advice 
from U.K. and Welsh Government. 

 
Even under normal circumstances, meetings do not have to be held in a 
formal committee room environment. You may wish to hold occasional 
meetings in community location settings e.g. community centres, sports 
facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the formal setting 
intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see first-hand 
what the committee is investigating/ obtaining information on e.g. waste sites, 
regeneration projects etc. 
 
 

Page 36



Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/ carers and/ or the general public (public 
calls for evidence) 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 
 
 
 

  

APPENDIX I 

Page 38



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/21 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic 
area and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Linked to MTCBC’s 
Wellbeing Objectives 

(Corporate Objectives)? 

Officer & Cabinet Member 
 

 (Other) 
Scrutiny Focus  

21st 
September 
2020 

Draft Annual Work 
Programme 2020/21 

BS Best Start to Life  Scrutiny and Challenge: -  To consider the draft 
Annual Work programme for 2020/21 
 

Learning Department’s 
Response to Covid-19 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer - 
Learning 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To consider the impact and 
response of the Learning Department following the 
outbreak of Covid-19.  
 

School’s Response to Covid-
19 

BS Best Start to Life  Scrutiny and Challenge: - Head Teachers of Pen-Y-
Dre High School and Troedyrhiw Primary School to 
attend to discuss schools response to Covid-19. 
 

19th October 
2020 

CSC Delivery Programme: 
Commitment to Raising 
Aspirations Raising Standards 
(RARS) 
 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer – 
Learning / Emma Willmott: 
Senior Challenge Advisor 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To provide challenge to 
CSC in relation to their commitments towards Raising 
Aspirations and Raising Standards.  

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 
(Inspection Area 2) and the 
Corporate Self Evaluation KQ2 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer - 
Learning 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 
on a specific Local Government Education Services 
Inspection Framework element. 

30th 
November 
2020 
Meeting 
cancelled due 
to Mass 
Testing 

Report on the role of Health 
and Early Years 
 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer – 
Learning / Chris Hole: Head of 
Community Wellbeing 

Scrutiny and Challenge: -  Representative(s) from the 
Health Board to attend to present to members what 
the Health Board does to support children and young 
people in particular the role in addressing issues such 
as low birth-weight, childhood obesity, levels of 
dental cavities. 

P
age 39



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/21 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic 
area and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

11th January 
2021 

Report on the role of Health 
and Early Years 
Deferred from November 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer – 
Learning / Chris Hole: Head of 
Community Wellbeing 

Scrutiny and Challenge: -  Representative(s) from the 
Health Board to attend to present to members what 
the Health Board does to support children and young 
people in particular the role in addressing issues such 
as low birth-weight, childhood obesity, levels of 
dental cavities. 

8th February 
2021 

Wellbeing: Report on Anti-
bullying  

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer – 
Learning / Chris Hole: Head of 
Community Wellbeing 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Learning Department 
will present a report which outlines the work being 
done to tackle issues around bullying across the 
County Borough including the growing issues in 
relation to cyber-bullying. The Head Teachers of 
Caedraw Primary School and Gellifaelog Primary 
School will also be in attendance to provide further 
insight in relation to the work being done around 
anti-bullying. 
 

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 
(Inspection Area 3) 
Deferred from January 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer - 
Learning 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 
on a specific Local Government Education Services 
Inspection Framework element. 

Learning Asset Management 
Plan (21st Century Schools) 
Moved from January - 
Deferred to 15th March 2021 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer – 
Learning / Head of School 
Planning & Improvement 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive an update on the developments of the 
Asset Management Plan (21st Century Schools) 
projects for Learning. 

15th March 
2021 

Performance Measures for 
Education – This item has 
replaced: ESTYN Self 
Evaluation Reporting (SER) 
Framework (Inspection Area 
1) due to unavailability of 
data 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer – 
Learning / Emma Willmott: 
Senior Challenge Advisor 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 
which outlines the changes to performance 
measures across Education settings. 

P
age 40



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/21 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic 
area and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

 

Additional items to consider for Work 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

To invite / visit Heads and Chairs of Governance at the following schools :- 
 

 Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Santes Tudful 

 Pen-y-dre High School 

 Ynysowen Community Primary School 

 Visit Educated Other Than at School (EOTAS) to see what provision is available (before 8th April). 

 Visit LRB’s (Learning Resource Basis) as part of the programme of visits. 

Date to be 
confirmed 

Capita One System – Update Report 
Deferred from 15th March. Date to be confirmed. Will be added to Forward Work Programme as part of next municipal scrutiny cycle 

Date to be 
confirmed 

Learning Asset Management Plan (21st Century Schools) 
Deferred from February to March. Date to be confirmed. Will be added to Forward Work Programme as part of next municipal scrutiny 
cycle 

 

Update on Activity – 
Pandemic (brought forward 
from 26th April 2021) 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer – 
Learning / Emma Strand: Data 
Officer 

Scrutiny and Challenge: To consider the impact and 
response of the Learning Department following the 
outbreak of Covid-19. Update from report which was 
presented to the Learning & LGES Scrutiny 
Committee on the 21st September 2020. 

26th April 2021 

Focus on Additional Learning 
Needs (ALN) (report to 
include update on the 
Readiness Tool) 
 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer – 
Learning / Sarah Bowen: 
Inclusion Manager 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To receive a report on 
Additional Learning Needs (ALN) that should also 
include updates on the ‘Readiness Tool’ which was 
presented to Learning & LGES Scrutiny Committee on 
the 25th November 2019. 

Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) 
Update Report 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer – 
Learning 

Scrutiny and Challenge: -  To receive a report on the 
progress of the PRU since opening including report 
on children Educated other than at School (EOTAS) 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Additional Learning Needs (ALN) and Outreach Support across the Authority
	Appendix 1

	4 Review of the Education Other Than At School (EOTAS) Provision
	5 Forward Work Programme 2020/21
	Appendix 1


